FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

CONTENTS

	Page Number
FINANCIAL SECTION	
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	3
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Net Position and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet	8
Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances	9
Notes to Financial Statements	10
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual	15
COMPLIANCE SECTION	
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH	
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	17
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT	19
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MANAGEMENT LETTER	20



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and General Fund of the Osceola County, Florida Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA"), a component unit of Osceola County, Florida as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CRA's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CRA's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and General Fund of the CRA as of September 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated April 30, 2021 on our consideration of the CRA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the CRA's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

MSL, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida April 30, 2021

Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a narrative overview and analysis of the Osceola County, Florida Community Redevelopment Agency ("CRA") financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the CRA's basic financial statements. The CRA's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the CRA's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the CRA's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the CRA is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Also, capital assets are capitalized and depreciated on the statement of net position whereas related purchases are expended on government fund financial statements.

General Fund. The General Fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the General Fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of the General Fund is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the General Fund with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the General Fund balance sheet and the General Fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between General Fund and governmental activities.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

Other Information. The CRA adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the CRA, assets exceeded liabilities by \$1,412,001 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. This compares with \$831,520 at the close of the previous fiscal year, an increase of \$580,481. Cash and investments increased \$573,139 due to transfers in the current year.

Community Redevelopment Agency Statement of Net Position September 30

	2020		2019			
Assets:						
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 1	,412,659	\$	839,520		
Total Current Assets	\$ 1,	,412,659	\$	\$ 839,520		
Liabilities:						
Accounts Payables	\$	-	\$	8,000		
Accrued Liabilities		658		-		
Total Current Liabilities	\$	658	\$	8,000		
Net Position						
Unrestricted	1,412,001		831,520			
Total Net Position	\$ 1,	\$ 1,412,001		831,520		

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the CRA's net position by \$580,481 in fiscal year 2020. The increase in revenue was caused by an increase in Governmental revenue due to new development property value increase. General government expense decreased due to the delay in the start of a landscaping upgrade project.

Community Redevelopment Agency Statement of Activities September 30

	2020	2019
Revenues:		
Intergovernmental	\$ 568,749	\$ 465,536
Interest Income	17,909	25,738
Total Revenues	586,658	491,274
Expenses: General Government Cultural and Recreation Total Expenses	6,177 - 6,177	174,628 40,539 215,167
Change in Net Position	580,481	276,107
Total Net Position – Beginning	831,520	555,413
Total Net Position – Ending	\$ 1,412,001	\$ 831,520

Financial Analysis of the General Fund

As noted earlier, the CRA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The purpose of the CRA's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the CRA's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Primary variances between the final budget and actual operating expenditure categories were as follows:

- Budget for personal service providing for the partial allocation of two employees that support the CRA was not used during this fiscal year.
- Professional services in the amount of \$800,000 for landscaping project was not completed at the end of this fiscal year.

Capital Asset Administration

As of September 30, 2020 the CRA does not have any capital assets. Threshold for capital assets is \$1,000 as of September 30,2020; Fiscal year 2021 will be increased to \$5,000 to comply with Florida Administrative Code (FAC) 69I-73.

Economic Factors and Conditions

- The average unemployment rate for Osceola County during 2020 was 13.3%, mainly caused by the economic impacts of the global pandemic. This rate is slightly less than that of the state average and the highest when comparing the five county Central Florida.
- The assessed taxable value of real and personal property combined increase 10.6% in fiscal year 2020.
- The population estimate for Osceola County for fiscal year 2020 was 387,055, an increase of 4.5% from fiscal year 2019.
- During the current fiscal year, new residential construction in the County was valued at \$1,084.2 MM and commercial construction at \$378.3 MM, information was obtained from Osceola County Property Appraiser.
- Fiscal Year 2020 Adopted Budget was \$856,344.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the CRA's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information should be addressed to the Comptroller's Office, Osceola County BOCC, 1 Courthouse Square, Suite 2100, Kissimmee, Florida 34741.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2020

	General Fund	Adjustments	Statement of Net Position
ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,412,659	\$ -	\$ 1,412,659
TOTAL ASSETS	1,412,659		1,412,659
LIABILITIES Accrued Liabilities	658		658
TOTAL LIABILITIES	658		658
FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION			
Fund balances: Unassigned	1,412,001	(1,412,001)	
TOTAL FUND BALANCES	1,412,001	(1,412,001)	
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	\$ 1,412,659		
Net position: Net investment in capital assets			
Unrestricted		1,412,001	1,412,001
TOTAL NET POSITION		\$ 1,412,001	\$ 1,412,001

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended September 30, 2020

	General Fund	Adjustments	Statement of Activities	
REVENUES Interest income Intergovernmental	\$ 17,909 568,749	\$ - -	\$ 17,909 568,749	
TOTAL REVENUES	586,658		586,658	
EXPENDITURES / EXPENSES General government TOTAL EXPENDITURES / EXPENSES	6,177 6,177	<u> </u>	6,177 6,177	
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES	580,481	(580,481)	580,481	
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE / NET POSITIION	580,481	580,481	580,481	
FUND BALANCES Beginning of the year	831,520	<u>-</u>	831,520	
End of the year	\$ 1,412,001	\$ -	\$ 1,412,001	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

The East U.S. 192 Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA") is a blended component unit of the Osceola County Board of County Commissioners. The governing body of the CRA is composed of the primary government board, which has operational responsibility for the component unit.

The CRA was created pursuant to Chapter 163, Part III, Florida Statutes, through ordinances passed by the County. It was created by Resolution 12-025R dated April 9, 2012 for the purpose of renewing economic interest and improving the commercial diversity and viability of a redevelopment area along East U.S 192.

Pursuant to Florida Statute 163.387, the CRA is funded primarily by increment tax revenues received based on taxable value within the Redevelopment Area. The accounting policies of the CRA conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements of the CRA are composed of the following:

- Government-wide Financial Statements
- Fund Financial Statements
- Notes to Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements (the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on the reporting government as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. The CRA only has governmental activity and does not engage in any business-type activities.

The Statement of Activities shows the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly related to a specific function or segment. Program revenue consists of contributions that are restricted to meeting specific requirements of a particular function or segment.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the CRA considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Interest income revenues during the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.

The CRA reports the following major governmental fund:

<u>General Fund</u> - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the CRA and is used to account for all financial resources, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the CRA policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Accounting

The CRA prepares its financial statements on the modified accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental funds, as applied to governmental units. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the CRA considers most revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

The assets, liabilities, and fund balance net position of the CRA are reported in a self-balancing set of accounts, which include unrestricted resources, representing funds available for support the CRA's operations.

Interest Income, Transfers in Revenue and Expenditures

The CRA revenue and expenditures consist of revenues received based on taxable value within the Redevelopment Area and Interest earned. Expenditures incurred relating to the operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The CRA participates in the County's pooled cash investment program. As such, the CRA equity in the County's investment pool is considered to be a cash equivalent, since the CRA can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. Investment income is allocated based upon the average daily balance in the pool.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended September 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concluded)

Budgets and the Budgetary Accounting

The CRA follows the Osceola County Board of County Commissioners procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial statements:

- The CRA submit, at a various times, to the Board a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means for financing them.
- The tentative budget is reviewed and/or modified by the Board after which public hearings are conducted pursuant to Section 200.065 of the Florida Statutes.
- Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted by approval of the Board.
- Revision to the total budget requires Board approval. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level; however, with proper approval by the Board, budgetary transfers between line items can be made.
- Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.
- The CRA fund have legally adopted annual budget.
- All encumbered and unencumbered appropriations lapse at the close of the fiscal year.

Fund Balance

The unrestricted fund balance represents the CRA's resources available for future operations.

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Pending Litigation - There are no lawsuits and claims, arising in the ordinary course of the CRA operations, pending against the CRA.

NOTE 3 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The CRA follows the County's Risk Management Policy. The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The County is self-insured for worker's compensation, dental and health insurance claims. Commercial insurance is purchased for all other risks including property and casualty, vehicles and public officials. Coverage are at levels such that the County does not retain a significant risk of loss.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended September 30, 2020

	Budgeted Amounts			Actual		Variance with		
	C	Original Final		Amounts		Final Budget		
GENERAL FUND Revenues:								
Investment income	\$	5,175	\$	5,175	\$	17,909	\$	12,734
Intergovernmental		568,749		568,749		568,749		
TOTAL REVENUES		573,924		573,924		586,658		12,734
EXPENDITURES Current:								
General government		860,756		860,756		6,177		854,579
TOTAL EXPENDITURES		860,756		860,756		6,177		854,579
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES		(286,832)		(286,832)		580,481		867,313
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR		831,520		831,520		831,520		
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR	\$	544,688	\$	544,688	\$	1,412,001	\$	867,313

Note: This schedule is prepared on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles.

COMPLIANCE SECTION



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Osceola county, Florida Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA") as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CRA's financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the CRA's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CRA's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, grant agreements and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Pursuant to provisions of Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General*, we reported certain matters to management of the CRA in a separate management letter and Independent Accountant's Report Dated April 30, 2021.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CRA's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

MSL, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida April 30, 2021



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

We have examined the Osceola County, Florida Community Redevelopment Agency's (the "CRA") compliance with the requirements of Sections 163.387(6), 163.387(7) and 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. Management is responsible for the CRA's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the CRA's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the CRA is in accordance with those requirements, in all material respects. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the CRA's compliance with those requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the CRA's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the CRA complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.

MSL, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida April 30, 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Osceola County, Florida Community Redevelopment Agency (the "CRA") as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30 2021.

Auditor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General*.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, and Independent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted in accordance with *AICPA Professional Standards*, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General*. Disclosures in those reports, which are dated April 30, 2021, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no recommendations made in the preceding audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., *Rules of the Auditor General*, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Honorable Board of County Commissioners Community Redevelopment Agency

Financial Condition

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the CRA has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the CRA did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), *Rules of the Auditor General*, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the CRA. It is management's responsibility to monitor the CRA's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., *Rules of the Auditor General*, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.38(3)(b), Florida Statues. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, federal and other granting agencies, the CRA's Board of Directors, and applicable management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MSL, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

Orlando, Florida April 30, 2021